
G
CAPITAL IN DIA

Rediscover Business

Soturdoy, October 6, 2018

Ref. No.: ctFL/BSE-oB/2olB-]9

To,

The Monager,

Bomboy Stock Exchonge Limited,
Phlroze Jeejeebhoy Towsrs,
Dolql Str€et, Mumboi- 400001

Sub.:

Ref.:- Scrlp Code No, BSE-530879

Submlsslon of outcome ol Boord MeetinE of Cqpitql tndiq Finonce llmlted (formerly
Tex-Fln

Dearslr/ Mo'om,

ln complionce wlth provislons of tho sEBl (Listing obllgotlons qnd Dlsclosure Requlrements)
Regulotlons, 2015, we would llke to hereby lnform BSE Llmlted thqt, omong others, the following
mdtters were decided ot the meetlng of the Boqrd of Directors ('aoorO') of the compony held on
october 6, 2018, ot one BKc, A-wlng,l4th floor, G Block, BKc, Bqndro Eost, Mumbol - 4ooo6l:

I, The Boord opproved ond took on record:
- the Audited Speciol Purpose Stondqlono ond Consolidoted lnterim Finqnciol lnformqtion for

the three-months period ended June 30, 2018 qnd the ouditor's repofts thereon;
- the Restqtod Stondolone Finqnclql hformqtion for the Flnonclol Yeors onded on Morch 31,

2014, Mcrch 3I, 2015, Morch 31, 2016, Mqrch 31,2017, Mqrch 3l,2ol8 qnd os qt qnd for the three-
months perlod ended June 30, 2018 qnd the exominotion report thereon, issued by Deloltte
Hoskins I Sells LLP, Chortered Accountonts (Stotutory nuditors);ond

- the Restqted Consolidoted Finqnciql lnformqtion for the Flnonolol Yeor ended on Morch 31,

2018 qnd ds ot dnd for the three-months perlod ended June 30, 2ol8 dnd the exomlnqtlon
report thereon, issued by Deloitte Hoskins A Sells LLP, Chqitered Accountonts (stotutory
Auditors).

A copy of the Audited Speclol Purpose Stqndolone qnd Consolldqted lnterim Flnonciol lnformqtlon
for the three-monthb perlod ended June 30, 2Ol8 ond the ouditor's reports thereon is sttoched.

The Meeting commenced ot 3:00 P.M, ond concluded ot 5:46 P.M.

Request you to toke note of the obove lnformotion on your record ond oblige.

Thcnklng you,

Yours slncerely,
For cdpltql |ndls Flnqnce limited

known asBhllwardT

Mqlhotrq
compdny SecretqryS
Membership No.-A39894
Enc[ As qbove.
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Corporate office I

A-14O?, One Bl<c, 14th Floor,
G - Block, Bandra l(ur{a Complex,
Bandra (East) fvlunrbai,
Mirharashtra- 400051

llegistererl Offl ce :

2ncl Floor, Dl-F Centre,
Sansad Marg,
NewDelhl-110001

P ;r.91 22 45036000 P :+91 'l 149546000
E :lnl'o@)capitalirrclia.corn W:www.calritallrrcll.r.com
CIN No: l-74899D11 994P1C128577
( Capital lndia Finarrce Ltcl - Formerly krrown i.rs Bhilwara'lex-Fln L[d )



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLp

Report on the Audit
f nformation

t. Opinion

Chartered Accountants
Lotus Corporate park
1st Floor, Wing A - G
CTS No.1 85/A, Jay Coach
Off Western Express HighWaV
Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, lndla

rel+91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

]l;ffi;.T+:l HT,ffi:jcAprrAL rNDrA FTNANCE LrMrrED (Formerry known

of the Special purpose Standalone Interim Financial

2

we have audited the accompanying specia-l purpose standarone interim financiarinformation (the "soecial Purpose dtuiouion" l.i"ri,il ri"#1, Information,,) of capitarInd ia Fi na nce Li m ited r norme.lv t;;;". eh irwara ie*-nn' rilited) ( the,.company,,),which comprise the Baranc" sh""iu. q-tJ:ne ro, zois,'lhe statement of profit andLoss and the statement otcash rltws ior the ttrree mo-nths perioo then ended, and asumrnary of significant accounting poricies and other expranatory inrormation.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expranationsgiven to us' the aforesaid special o*p"." standalonelrl;;1,.n Financial Information isprepared' in all material respects, in ll.oro.nce wiin ln" uuri. set out in note 2,1 tothe special purpose Standarone rnt".il*'rinanciar Information.
Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit of the special Purpose standalone Interim FinancialInformation in accordance wiih tnu-stl'no"ro, on irjiti,.,-g'?rnr) issued by the Instituteof chartered Accountants of rnJiu rtaotl. ou, ,.erponriiirlti., under those standardsare further described in the nrJitor;r Responsibiriti";-i;, the Audit of the speciarPurpose standarone Interim ri"l".ij Information ;;.il;n of our report. we areindependent of the company in u..oli-"ce with the code of Ethics issued by the ICAItogether with the iloerynfin.u i"q"r"ir".ents that are relevant to our audtt of theflnanciar statements under $t" prouilions.of the corpuni", Act, 2013 (the,,Act,,) andthe Rutes made ttrereunoer, ;il; have futriii"-J;;; other responsibiriries inaccordance with these requirements ano the code or i r.ri-i* we believe that the auditevidence obtained by us is sufficieni ano apgrop;;;;;;ide a basis for our opinionon the speciar purpose standa/one int"iir Financiar Information.
Emphasis of Matter- Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and

3.

W draw attention to Note 2.1 to the Special pu Standalone interim Financi al
rpos eInfo rmation, which describes the purpose and basis of preparation. The Speciarpose Standa one Interim Fin ancia information have been prepared by the Companyr the purpose of preparation of the restated financial information as required underSecu rities and Exchange Boa rd of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosurequirements) Regulations, ZOO} as amended from time to time in pursuance ofprovisions of Se cu rities a nd Exchan ge Board of India Act, 1992 (, 'ICDR Regulations,')

Regd, Office: lndiabulls Finance Centre, Tower
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Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

in relation.tg the.proposed rights issue of the Company and for the purpose of filingwith BSE Limited. As a result, the Special Purpose Standalone Interim FinancialInformation may not be suitable for any another purpose. The Special purpose
Standalone Interim Financial Information cannot be' reierred to or distributed orincluded in any offering document or used for any other purpose except with our prior
consent in writing' Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

4' Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for thespecial Purpose standalone rnterim Financial rniormation

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information that give a true andfairview of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows olthe Companyin accordance with the basis stated in Note 2,1 to the Special purpose Standalone
Interim Financial Information for the purpose set out in paragraph 3 above.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of [ne Companyand for preventing and detecting frauds anJ other- irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgrients and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequateinternal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracyand completeness of the accounting recorJs, relevant to the freparation andpresentation of the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Infoimation that give
a true and fairview and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing of these special Purpose standalone Interim Financial Information, the
Company's management is responsible for assessing the Company,s ability to coniinueas a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern andusing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends toliquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company,s financial
reporting process,

5. Auditor's Responsibilities for !he Audit of the Special purpose StandaloneInterim Financial Information

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special purpose
Standalone Interim Financial Information as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not aguarantee that an audit conducted in accordance wittr sns will always detect a materialmisstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably beexpected to influence the economic decisions oi-users taken on the basis of these
special Purpose standarone Interim Financiar Information.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
intain professional skepticism throughout the audit. we also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special purpose
Standalone Interi m Financial Information, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain auditevidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
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Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLp

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contro-|.

' Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in orderto design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not forthe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company,s
internal control,

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related discloiures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basisof accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, wheilrer a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s
report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Standalone Interim
Financial Information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date'of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the auoit and significant u,]oit finoi'igs that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we havecomplied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matteis that'may reasonably bethought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLp
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 1l_7366W W-1O0O18)

"qfl"r-t-ls-
Kalpesh J. Mehta

Partner
(Membership No. 4879I)Mumbai, October 6, 201g



Special Purpose Standalone Interirn Financinl Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Balance sheet as at 30th June 20Ig
(Allfigures are in nrpees, except otheruise statecl)

Notes I to 28 fornts part ofthe Special Purpose Stanrlalone Interirn Financial Information
In ternrs of our report attached

tr'or Deloitte Hnskins & Se ils LLp
Chartered Accountants

Itirrr l{egistration No. :ll7366WAV -l000lg

etu4ef^lL

For and on of the bon rd
Capltal Limited

('j

Director

DIN :06706341

Nccraj Toshniwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Murnbai

Date: 6th October. 20 I 8

I(alpcsh J. Mehtn
Partner

Membership No : 48791

Place: MLrnrbai

Date: 6th October, 201 8

Amit Snhai Kulshrcshths
CEO & Executive Director

DIN : 07869849

MAlhotra
Conrpany Secretary

Place: MLrmbai

Date: 6th October, 201 8

J

As atParti cu la rs
Note s

Junc 2018

43, I 8,s7,000

740

740

s,03

7,00,00,000

67,83,58 I

7 72,87,548

2.21,68,444

8 796

18

12,65,32,425

2,15,t36
73,85,000

l 5,04,00,000

22,67,1,s0

39JJ

t,2t,2s,86,347
2,48,40,000

l 0,00,s5,052

98, I 0,40,6s?

12,t33
189

II. ASSETS
(1) Non-currcnt assets

(a) Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets

(ii) Intangible assets

(iii) Intangible assets nnder development
(b) Non-cunent investments
(o) Defened tax assets (net)
(d) Long-ter-rn loans and advances

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Total

(2) Non-curr.ent liabilitics
(a) Long-tcrm borrorvings
(b) Other Iong term liabilities
(c) Long+enu provisions

(3) Current linbilitics
(a) Other cunent liabilities
(b) Shorl tenn provisions

(2) Currcnt assets
(a) Cunent investlneltt
(b) Trade reoeivables

(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Short-ternr loans and advances
(e) Other current assets

(l) Sharcholder.s' firurls
(a) Share capital
(b) Resewes and surplus

J

4

5

6

7

6

7

8

9
l,

l0

9

IJ

t4
l0
ll

Mumbai



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Cnpital India Finance Limited
Statement ofprofit and loss for the period ended 30th June 201g
(Allfigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

Earnings per equity share
B-asic and diluted earnirg per equity share (in fu.)
[facevalue Rs. 10 each] (Nor Annualised)

Notes 1 to 28 forms part of the Special Purpose Standalone hrterirn Financial Information
In tcmrs ofour rcport attachcd

20

0.68

For Deloitte Hasldns & Sells LLp
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. :l 17366WAil -10001 8

For and on of the board

ilcc Limited

Mtlyry A,-.,-f- Sh, v-..1,,1a'-ld"^
Amit Sahai Kulshreshtha
CEO & Exccutivc Dircctor
DIN : 07869849

Rachit Malhotra
Company Secretary

Place: MLunbai

Date: 6th October,20lg

Kalpesh J. Mehta

Partncr
Membership No. : 48791

Place: Mumbai

Date: 6th October, 201 8

Porwal

Director

DIN: 06706341

Neeraj

Chief Financial Ofllcer

Place: Mumbai

DBte: 6th October, 201 I

Particulars
Notes

Period ended

30th June 2018

6.86,46,747

s0,94,532

7

2,56,96,940

s1,69,912

51,47 ,125
2,s0,68,675

operations

costs

III. Total revenue

otal expenses

IL Other income

Revenue

IV. Expenses

benefit expenses

Other expenses

& anrortisatiou expenses

V. Profit before tax (III-IV)
VI. Tax expense

(l) Cunent fax
(2) Defened tax

l5
t6

1't

l8
d

t9

29,57,550

5,36,854

1,26,s8,627

VII. Profif for fhr

Murnbai



Pcriod cndcd
30th .Iunc 2018

PARTICULARS

1,26,58,627

5t,47 ,125
32,52,532

(s0,94,532)

1,59,63,752

7,5'1 ,38,012
(2, l 6,00,000)

I 2,5 6,s48

(80,2 5,4s9)
(l2.23.38.59t

(5,90,05,678)
(69. l 0.3 73)

(6,s9,16,0sr)

(3,2s,22,483)

(r ,24,75, l 5,9s8)

4.00.24. r43

( 1,24,00,1 4,298)

2,49,26,35,412
(42,ts,7 69)

( l,25,00,00,000)
1,2s,00,00,000

( 1.25.00.00.0001

1,23,84,19,643

A) CASH FROI},I OPERATING ACTIVI'IIES:
Net profit before tax

Adjustments for r

Depreciation and arnortisatiou

Provision for employee benefits

lncornc lronr nrutual lund units

Opelating profit before working capital changcs

Adjustrnents for changes in r.vorking capital :

Decrease in loans aud advances

(lncrease) in trade receivables

Increase irr other long temr liabilities
(lucrease) in other current assets

(Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash (uscd in) operations
Iucorne tax paid

Net Cash (uscd in) opcrnting activitics (A)

B) CASH FROTVT rNVES-f rNG ACTMTIES
Purchase of fixed assets

PLrrchase of curtent investmellts

Proceeds from sale of current investrnents

Nct Cnsh (used in) investing activities (B)

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITINS:
Proceeds fionr issue of equity shares at prcmiunl

Payment of dividend and dividend distribution tax thereon (Refer note 4 (d))

Repayment ofadvance towards share application ntoney

Procceds from short term borrowings
Repayment ofshort tenn borrowings

Net cash gencratcd from financing activitics (C)

(6,75,1 0,706)

l 6.7s.65.758
D) Nct (decrense) in cash and cash cquivalcnts (AI'I]+'C)

E) Cash and cash couivalents ns at the bcginning 0f thc period
10,00.55,052F) Cash and cash equivslents as al lhc end of tltc period

Special Purposc Standalone Interim liinancial Information
Capital India Financc Limitcd
Cash flow statement for the pcriod cndcd 3{)th Jrrnc 2018

(Allfigures are in rupees, excepl olheru,ise staled)

Cash nnd cash cnts conr

Notes 1 to 28 fornrs part of the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial lnforlnation

In terms ofour report attached

For Deloittc Hsskins & Sclls LLP
Chartered Accountants

firm Registration No. :l l7366WW t000t8

For flnd on behnlf of thc board

Capital India

(r

Director

DIN . 0670634 I

-A;l 9-l; u14*-4il^wk\
Kalpesh J. lVlehta

Pa rincr
Mernbership No, : 48791

Place: Mr.rnrbai

Date: 6th October,20l8

t"M ,
Nccnrj 'l'oshnirr|/'
Chicf l.'inuncinl 4ficcr

Amit Sahni I(ulshreshtha

CEO & Executive i)irector

DIN: 07869849

or

il Mnthotra

Company Secretary

Place: Murnbai

Date: 6rh Octobe r. 201 8

Place: Munrbai

As at

30th Junc 2018
Par(iculars

42,248

20,00,000

3,30,t 2,804

6.50.00.000

10.00.55.052

Cash in hand

Chequcs in hand

Balances with banks

- in currenl accounts

- in deposit accoLrnts

Mumbai

Date: 6th October, 201 8



SpecinI Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finnnce Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period encled 30th June20lg
(All Jigure.s are in rupees , except otherv)ise stated)

I Brrckgr.ound

capital India FinaDce Linrited ('the company') is a public cornpany domiciled in India and incorporated ou I 6 November I gg4 under theprovisions of Cornpanies Act, l956 The Company has receivecl a Certifioate of Rcgistration nurnbsr B-14.0321g <lated3()th August20.l7liorn the Iteserue Bauk of Iudia ('RBI') to catry on the busiuess of Non-Banking Financial hstitution (,NBFC) i.vithout accepti'g pubtic
deposits.

2 Significant nccounting policies

2,1 llasils oJ accounting and preputtion offnancial stotements

Tltese Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information comprises of the Balance Sheet, the Staten.reut ol. profit and Loss, the
Statenlent of caslr Flows alid a sunllnary of Siguilicant Accounting l)olicics and notcs thereon (collectively the .,Special purpose
Slaudalolle ltlterirn Financial Irlformation"), These special Purpose Standalone hrterirn Financial Infonnation have been prepare<! by the
Company for the purpose olpreparatiou ofthe restated standalone financial infomration as required under the Securilies and Exchange
Board ofhrdia (Issire ofcapital and Disclosrtre Requiretneuts) Regulations,2009 as amended fronr tinie to time i:rpurslance ofprovisiols
of Securities and Exchangc Board of India Act, 1 992 ("ICDR Regulations") in relation to thc proposcd rights issue of the courpany and
for the purpose of filing rvith BSE Linrited, These special Purpose Standalorie Interim Financiai l,lion ration are prepared and presertetl iu
accotdattce rvith recognition and nreasttrentent principles laid down in Accounting Standard 25 "lnterirn Financial Rcporting,,prcscribed
under Section 133 ofthe companies Act,20l3, read with the conrpanies (Accouriting standards) Rules,2006, as arnended, provisions o1.
the Companies Act,20l3 (to the exlent notified) aud as per the guidelines issued by Reserve Bauk ofJudia as applicable to a Non-tsanking
Fjnancial (Non deposit acceptirlg or holding) Conpanies ('NBFC RegLrlations') and accounting policies as 

'rentioned 
in Note 2 to these

Spcoial Purpose S(andalone Interim Financial Infonnation, except that comparative period linaucial inflormatio' have not been prescntcd.
The special Purpose Staudalone Financjal Infomration, being loi the specific purpose as stated above, are not a complete set 0fFinaucial
Slatentetrts prepared itl accordance with the reqnirements of the Act aud the Accountiug Standards issued thereunder, al]d hcncc
infomration disclosed including the nranuer ofdisclosuro may not be as required by the Act and/ or the Accounting stalldards.

2,2 Use of Estimates

The preparatiou of financial statements is in conformity with the Geflerally Acccptcd Accounting principles (,GAAp') requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptious that affect the application of accounting pllicies and reported amou'ts of
assets, liabilities' ittconte and expenses artd disclo.sure ofcoutingent liabilities oiithe date ofthe financial statencnts, Managcmcnt believes
that the estimates made iu the preparation of financial statenents are pnrdent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from thcse
estimates' Estitnates and underlying assutnptious are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revisiorr to accounting cstinratcs is rccognised
prospectively in cunent and fuhrre periods.

2.3 Opernting cycle

Based otl the nature of activities of the company and the normal tirne between acc|.risiti<-rn ol assets and their realization i' cash or oaslr
cquivalents, the Company has determined its operating oycle as l2 months for thc purpose olclassifioation of its assets and liabilities as
currcnt and non-current.

2.4 Fixel nssets, depreciilion ond umortisution

Tangible fixed assett
a) Tangible fixed assets are oarried at cost of acqtrisilion or construction lcss accuurulatcd depreciation and / or accumulated impai'.e't loss,if any- The cost of au item of taDgible fixed asset courprises its purchase price and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its interlded use. Subsequent expcnditure is capitalised only when it
ittcreases tlte lirttrre econonric benefits from the specific asset to which it relates. Tangible fixed asseis under construotion are disclosed as
capital work-in-progress.

Acqttired intangible assels

b) Intangiblc asscts that are acquired by the Company are measnled initially at cost, After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried atits cost less auy accurmtlated aruortisation an<J auy accumulated in pairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases lhc future cconomic bc'cfits fiom the specific assel to which it relates,

Lea s e ho I d i mp rov e me n t s

c) Leasehold improvelnent includes all expenditure iucurrcd on tl.re leaseholcl premiscs that have futur-c ecouornic beuefits. I-easehold
improvcments are lvritten offover flre period oflease.



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Lirnited
Notes to the standalone linancial statements for the periocl enrled 30th June 201g
(Allfgtu'es are in rupees , except otherwi.se stated)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Depreci o Iion a nd ct ntorI i:a Iion
d) Depreciation / antortisalion is providcd ovcr thc uselul lifb of thc assets, pro rata for the pelod of use, or.r a straight-tine method. The

useful life estirrates prescribed irr Part C ofSchedule II to the 2013 Act have been considered as usef,rl life for tangible assets. Acquired
intangible assets are arnortised over a pcriod as pcr lnanagcnrcnt cstilnatcs of their useful [ife. pursuant to this polioy, the useful life
estintates in respect ofthe following assets are as follows:

Tangible fixed assets

Colnputers & Printers

Furniture & Fixtures

Leasehold Inrprovenrents

OfIice Equiprnents

Vehicles

Estimntcd uscful life
3 years

l0 Years

5 Ycars

5 Years

5 Years

e)

Acquircd intangiblc assets

Conrputer soflware
3 Years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the rnonth in wlrich asset is ready for use. Individual asscts costir)g lcss ltran or
eqnals to Rs 5,000 are depreciated irt firlt, in the year ofpurchase, Depreciation on asse(s sold during the year is recognized on a pro-rata
basis in the sfatemelll ofprofit and loss up to the nrouth prior to the mouth in which the assets lrave been disposerJ off.

Gains / losses on di,sposal of assets

Losses arisirg fronl retiremetrt or gains or losses arising from disposal oftangible and intangible assets are measured as the differelce
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset and are recognised in the slatement ofprofit and loss,

Impnirment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on intemal/extenral
factors. If any suclt iudicatiotr exists, the Company estirnates the recoverable anrount of the asset, If such recovelable amount of the asset
or the recovorable amount of the cash gerrerating unit which the asset belongs to, is less than its carrying amor,lnt, the canyil1g ar.nount is
reduced to its recoverable arnonnt. The reduction is treated as au impaimrent loss and is recognised in the statemerrt ofprofil and loss. Ifat
the balance sheet date there is an indication tbat a previously assessed impairment loss no louger exists, the recoverable alnoult is
reassessed aud lhe asse( is reflected at the recoverable arnouut subject to a maxinutnt ofdeprecia6le historical cost_

0

2.5

2.6 Leoses

Assets acqLrired trnder lease othel than finance lease are classified as operating lcase. The total lease rentals in respecl ofassets taken on
operating lease are charged to the statetrent ofprofit ancj loss on a straight line basis over tlie lease term 1in accordance wjth AS-19
'Leases'as prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006).

2.7 Lonrts

2.8

.:', K I ,^/

Loans are stated at the alnount advanced, as reduced by the arnounts received up to the balance sheet date.

Provisioning/ Write-off on ossets

Prov isioning/ lf/ t'ite-off o n overdue asse ls

The provisioning / write-off on overdue assets is as per the managelnent estimates, sulrject to the nrinimum provision tequired as per
Master Direction-Non Banking Firtarrcial Conrpany-Non-systemically Inrportant Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 20 I 6,

Provision on standard assets

Provision orr startdard assets has been made @ 0.40% r.vhich is itr accordance witlr Reserve Elank ollndia (.RBI') guidelines.

I
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Specirl Purpose Stnndalone Interirn Finnncial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(Allfigures are in rupees, excepl otherwise slaled)

2 Significant accounling policies (Conlinueil)

2,9 Inveslnenls

Investments that are leadily realisable and intended to be held for not nrore than a year are classified as current investmerits, All other

irrvestments are classihed as non curreIt iuvestments.

Currerlt investnrents are canied at lolver of cost and fair vahre determirred on an individual jnvestment basis. Unquoted inveshlents in the

tunits of urutual ftlnds ale valned at the net assct vahre declared by the nnrtual fiurd in respect of each particular scheure as per NBFC

prLrdential nornrs.

Norr current investurents are carried at cost, Holvever', provision lor diminution in value is rnade to recognise a decline other thall

temporary ir.r the value of the investnents.

Profit or loss on sale of investmellts is determirred on a firsl io lirst out basis. Any rednction iu the carrying amount aud any reversals of
such reductions are charged or credited to stateluent ofprolit and loss,

2,10 Revetue recogniliort

Revenue is recogriized on accrual basis, wlien rro significaut uncertainty as to detennination orrealization exists.

Iuterest income is recognised on time proportionate basis. hr case ofnon perfonning assets, interest income is recognised on receipt basis

as per NBFC prudential nonns. Penal interest is recognised on receipt basis.

Fee income is recognised on an accrual basis on completion ofservices as enumerated in the milestones specified in the relevant mandate

Ietters.

Upfront/ processilg fees is recognised as incorne as per terns ureutioned in the loan agreenlent,

Dividend income is recognised lvhen the shareholders' right to receive payment is established by the balauce sheet date. Dividend from the

units ofmntua[ funds is recognized on receipt basjs in accordarice with the NBFC Regulation.

2,1I Retireftrcnt fird othet enplo),ee benefils

All ernployee benefits payable wholly lvithin twelve months ofrerrdering the service are classified as short term employee benefits. These

benefits include salary, borlus, allowances and courpensated absences. The r.urdiscounted anrouut olshort teml employee benefits expected

to be paid iu exchange for lhe service rendered by the employees is recognised as an oxpcnse as the service is rendered by the enrployees.

The Company operates dcfined benefit plans lor its ernployees pertaining to gratuity liability. The cosls of providing benefits Lrnder this
plan are detenniued on the basis ofactuarial valLration at each year-end. Separate actualial valnation is oaried out using the projected unit
credit rnethod. Actuarial gains and losses for this defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the

staternent of profil and loss. Accunrulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the uext l2 morrths, is treated as short-term

employee benefit, The Company measures the expected cost ofsnch absences as the additiouai arnoullt that il expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlemeDt that has accumulated at the reporting date,

The Conipany freats acoumulated leave expected to be canied forward beyond twclve nrontlrs, as long-tenx eurployee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such.long-tenn compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projectcd unit

credit method at the year-end. ActLrarial gains/ losses are imnrediately taken to the statement of plofit and loss and are not defened. The

Company presents the leave as a curent liability in the balance sheet, to the exteut it does not have au unconditional right to defcr its

settlement for l2 months after the reporting date.

2,12 Borror+ting cosls

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other cost that an entity incurs in connection lvitlr borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are

recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incLrrred.
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Spccial Purpose Standalone Interint Ilinancia I Information
Cnpital India Finance Lirnitcd
Notes to the standalone finnncinl statcrnents for the period cndcd 30th Junc 20lE
(All /igurcs are in ntpees , excepl othenvise slated)

2 Significant accounting policics (Continued)

2.13 Shtre issue expeilses

Sltare issue expenses related to issuance ofequity are dcbited against securities premiuur accouut in accordance with the provisions of
Sectio:r 52 of the Companies Act,20l3.

2.14 Forelgn utftetrc! tronsnctions

Forcign exchangc transactions ate recorded the spot rate on the date of the respective transactions. Exchange dilferences arising on foreign
exchange trausactions setrled during the period are recognised in the staterlent ofprofit aud loss for the period.

Motictary asscts aud liabilities denonrinated in foreign culrencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on

that date; the resultant exchange differences are recognised in lhe sl.aterrent of profit aud loss.

Non rnonctary assets and liabilities are carried at historical cost using exchange rates as on the date of the respective lrausactions.

2.15 Toxotion

llconre tax expense comprises curuent tax including miuimurn alternale tax ('MAT') (i.e, auroLrnt of tax for the period detennined in

accoLdarce with the hrconre Tax Acl, I 96 I ) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting thc tax cffects of timirlg differences between

accounting income aud taxable inconre for the year).

The interinr period iucome tax expellse is calculated by applyiug, to the interirn period's pre{ax inconre, the tax rate that would be

app)icable to cxpooted total anrrual earnings, i.e., the estinated average annual effective inconre [ax rate.

The defened tax charge or credit and the corespondiug deferrcd tax liabilities or asscts are recognized usirlg the tax rates that have been

enacted or substanlively enacted by the balance sheet date. Defened tax assets zu'e recognized only to the extent there is reasonable

certainty that lhe assets can be realized in firlure; however, lvhere there is turabsorbcd dcprcciation or carried forward loss Lurder taxatjon

laws, defened tax assets are recognized to the extent there is vjrtual certainty ofrealization ofsuch assets. Defened tax Bssets are reviewed
as at each balance sheet date and writtert down or written up to reflect the auloulit that is rcasonably/ virlually certain (as the case may be)

to be realized,

MAT paid in accordance to the tax laws, lvhich gives rise to future economic benefits in the fonn of adjust[rent of lutLrre income Lax

liability, is considered as arl asset if tlrere is convincing evidence tlrat the Company lvill pay normal itcone tax in fr.rture years and is

recognized as tax credit in statelnent ofpl'ofil and loss.

2.16 Provisiotts and cotttingencies

Tlte Company creates a provision rvhen there is a present obligation as a resnlt of a past event that probably requires an outflorv of
resources aud a reliable estiurate can be made ofrhe arnount ofthe obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is nrade when there is

a possible obligation or a present obligation that rnay, bLtt probably will not, require an outflow of resotLrces. Wheu there is a possible

obligzrtior or a lrreselrt obligatiou iu respect ofwhich the likeliliood oloutflolv ofresonlces is rcnrote, no provision or disclosure is maclc,

2.17 Earnings per shure

The basic carnings per share is con.rpr.rted by dividing the nel profit / loss after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by
the weighted average uuutber of equity shares oLrtstanding durilg the reporting period, For the pLrrpose of calculatirrg diluted earnings per

sharc, the net plolit for the year attrjbutablc to cquity shareholders and the weighted average nurnber ofshares outstanding during the year

are ad_justed lor the effects ofall dilutive potential ecluity shares,

2,18 Cnsh unl cosh equivulettls

Cash and Cash EqLrivalents for the purpose of caslr flow statement conrprise oash in hand arid cash at bank including fixed deposit with
origiual rlaturity period of three months and short term highly liquid investments with an original nraturity of tluee months or less-



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standnlone financial statemcnts for the pcriod ended 30th June 2018
(All Jigures are in rupees , except otherwise stated)

3 Shalc capitnl

Authorised share capital
Equity shares ol Rs. l0 each

Preference shares of Rs. I 0 each

As nt

30th June 2018

Numbcr Amount

20,40,00,000

1,00,00,000

2,04,00,00,000

I 0.00.00.000

Issrred, subscribcd and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs. l0 cach

Total issucd, subscribed and fully paid up sharc capital

a, Rcconcilietionofthesharcsandamountoutstrndingatthcbeginningandatthoendof thcrcportingperiod:

At the begiruring of the period

Add : Allohneut dLrriug the period

Oulslanding at the end of the period

21,40,00,000 2,14,00,00,000

4,:i1,85,700 43,18,57,000

4,31,85,700 43,I8,57,000

As at
30th June 2018

Number Arnount
35,02,100

3,96,83,000

3,50,27,000

39,68,30,000

4,31,85,700 43,18,57,000

b. Terms and rights attachcd to fully paid up equity sharcs:

The Company has only one type of cquiry shatcs having par value of Rs. I 0 each. All shares rank pari passu with respect to dividend, voting rigltts
and other terms. Each sharehokler is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, ifany, by the Board ofDireclors is subject to approval
of sliareholders in the ensuing Arutual General Meeting, except in case ol interirn dividend, The repayment of equity share capital in the event of
liquidation and buy back ofshares are possible subject to prevalent regulations, In the event ofliquidation, normally the equiLy shareholders are

eligible to receive the rentaining assets ofthe cornpauy after distribution ofall preferential amounts, in proportion to their holdings,

c. Shares in thc Company hcld by cach sharcholdcr holding morc thnn 5%o sharest

As af
30th Junc 2018

Numbcr oA

lisUuU slureu_o_LBs. l0 r:acLt

Capital India Corp LLP (formerbt known as Trident lloldings LLP)
Dhararnpal Satyapal Limited
'l'otnl 3,45,13,1 00

d. Advnnce towards share application money

During the currcnt quartcr, the Company has refirnded back an amount of t 125,00,00,000 rece ived from Capital lndia Corp LLP as advance
against share application rnoney towards its entitlernent under the proposed Rights Issue ofthe Company.

KIN ,9

2,96,15,300

48,97,800
68.s8%

1t.34%

79.92"4

(,,
((\
r_'r
@

clt:--

c)

Jr

Eli[:l)



Special Purpose Stnndalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(All figures are in rupees , excepl otherwise stated)

4 Rcscrves und sulplus

a) Gcncrnl rcserve

Opening Balance

Add : Transfer during the period

Total

b) Sfatutory Reserye under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Opening Balance

Add: Transfer during the period

Tota'l

c) Sccurities premium account
Opening Balance

Add : Proceeds from issue ofequity shares

Less: Share issue expenses

Total

d) Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance

Add : Profit for the period

Less : Transfer to Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC ofthe RBI Act, 1934
Less : Dividend on equity shares

Less : Dividend tax thereon

Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Total rescrves and surplus

As at
30th June 2018

1,7 6,099

1,76,099

75,80,0 I 0

l 8,32,845

94,12,85s

2,10,3t,99,000

73,93,s 88

2,09,58,05,412

2,62,35,765

91,64,223

3,s3,99,988

l 8,32,845

35,02,700

7,13,069
2,93,57,374

2,73,4'l,45,740
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Special Purpose Standalone Interim tr'inancial Inlbrmation
Capital India Financc Limited
Notes to thc sttndalone frnancial statements for the pcriod ended 30th June 2018
(AllJigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

As at
30th June 2018

Non-currcnf Current
5 Borrowings

Unsecured

From corporates (lnter corporate deposits) 7,00,00,000

7,00,00,000

Additional information for Borrowings as on June 30, 2018;

Dcl$lg-o-{ Ugccurcd borrowi rr gs

- Inter corporate deposits of Rs. 7,00,00,000 is raised at an interest rate of 8% and repayable on 16 Febnsary,Zl22
' Inter corporate deposits ofRs. 1,25,00,00,000 is raised at an interest rate of 1 l% and repayable on demand. The same has been repaid
during the period-

6 Other lisbilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Rent equalisation reserve

Statutory dues payable

Creditors for capital goods

Other payables

67,83,s81

43,44,2s0

38,54,176

t,08,78,224

30,91,794

67,83,581 2,21,68,444

7 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for standard assets

3,92,8s6

I,l l,1 l 1

4t,t3,ts7
40,46,639

5.03.967 8r.s9.796

'r. IV S' o(+
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Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 30th June 20lg
(AIlfigures are [n rupees, except otherwise stated.)

8 Fixed assets

Particulars

assets

Leasehold improvements

Data processing equipments

Of{ice equipments

/ amortisation
Additions
during the

Net block

& fixnues

Deletions during
the period

As at
1st April, 2018

assefs

As at
30th June,20l6

Depreciation for
the period

Capital work in progress

3,22,66,26s

3't,59,374

7r,92,509
4,40,49,04r

As at
30th June, 2018

As at
30th June, 2018

lst April,2018

block

2,07,66,325

12,14,847

14,83,0 19

1,86,56,'703

70.30.000

At

5,30,32,590

44,36,229

86,7s,528

6,21,05,744

70.30.000

)1 
^Q 

1aO

3,51,523

3,04,824

r4,62,866

28,31.687

3,04,03 8

4,01,447

13,83.741

1.98_608

5,37,992

75.27

2.s9.987

49,80,866

6.09,314
7,72,271

28,46,607

4-9r.s0_8s4 537_9q7 1358-80-0Sl

2,04,96,66s

2r.604

76

4

ot

00assets

*

ff.g

)

As at

Accumulated

0

2,04,96,665

2.59.987

Adjustments
during the

42-6R 1S)

23.247

.000

od

\1 .2\.<).1

46,247

5t

851

68.3 92

2-15-r36

5.000

4,80.s1.724

38,26.915
79,63,257

5,98,59,t37

44-857

17

15



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(All figures are in rupees , except othenuise staled)

9 Investments
(al cost, unlcss otherutise stated)

Non Trade invcstments

Investmcnt in cquity instruments (unquoted):
-In subs itlinry comp anies

lfQQQQQQsquitv shnrcs (d Rs l0/- per share
- Capital India Home Loans Limited
10.000 eqrilv shares @ Rs l0/- pg shf,rq
- Capital India Asset Management Private Limited
- Capital India Wealth Management Private Lirrited
- CIFL Holding Private Lirnited
- CiFL Investmeut Manager Private Linrited

Trade investments

Invcstment in mutual fund units (At Nct Assets Valae):
Aditya Birla Sun Life Caslr PlLrs - Direct Growth
Frar*lin India Liquid Fu4d - Direct - Growth
HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct - Growtb
ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan -Direct - Grovth
Reliauce Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth

10 Loans and advanccs

(Seutred, co ns idered good)

Loans and advances relating to financing activity

(Unsearred, considered good)

Loans and advances relating to financing activiry
Other Ioans and advances

- Advances to related parties

- Loans and advances to employees
- Advances to suppliers
- Security deposits

- Balance with statutory authorities
- Advance taxes (net ofprovision for tax)
- Prepaid expenses

I I Othcr assets

Interest accrued and due

Inlerest accmed bul not dne

As at

30th June 2018

Non-current Current

r 5,00,00,000

r,00,000
r,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

25, 1 0,3 8,573

22,34,91,407

24,60,09,104

25,t0,40,457
24,10,06,806

1s,04.00,000 t,21.25.86.347

2,77,77,778 84,32"48,590

I r,00,00,000

I 1,06,640

1,85,00,2 t 0

3 1,50,90 t

13,86,644

26,25,670

26,66,707

1,6s,87,346

1.3,74.799

4,7354.62E r8.t0.40.6s7

1,82,73,278

32,38,85s

2.15.12.133

o
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Special Purpose Standalone Interim F inancinl Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 30th June 201E
(All figures are in rupees, excepl otherwise stated)

12 Deferrcd tax assets (net)

Defcrred tax assct comprises of:
Provision lor standard assets

Provision for employee benefits

Rent equalisation reserve

Depreciation on fixed assets

Deferred tax liability comprises of:
Timing differences in recognition of income

Deferrcd tax asscts (net)

l3 Tradc rcccivables

(Jns e cured, cons idered go o d)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
payment

Other receivables

14 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in currenl accounts

- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 montfis
Cheques in hand

As af
30th June 2018

I 1,56,690

12,53,570

12,08,570

43,160

(13,95,440)

22,67,t50

2,48,40,000

2,48,40,000

42,248

3,30, I 2,804

6,50,00,000

20"00,000

10,00,55,052



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Informntion
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 30th June 20lg
(Allfigures ai,re tn rupees, except otheruise stated)

15 Revcnue from operntions

Interest income

Fee income

16 Other incorne

Income from mutual fund units

17 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, bonus and allowalces
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staffwelfare expenses

18 Financc costs

Interest expettses

Bank chargcs

19 Other expenses

Rent

Rate, fee & taxes

Repairs & maintenance - others

Office expenses

Electricity charges

Communication expenses

Printing & stationery
Insutanoe

Membership & subscription
Travelling & conveyqnce

Advertisement, marketing & business pfomotion expenses
Auditor's rcmuneration
- Audit fees

Legal & professional charges

Listing fee

Directors sitting fees

Miscellaneous expenses

20 Earningspershare(NotAnnualised)

Net profit athibutable to equity shareholders @s.)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
Nominal value of an equify share (Rs-)
Bnsic and dilutcd crrnings per share (in Rs.)

Period cnded

30th June 2018

4,26,46,747

2,60,00,000

6,86,46,147

50,94,532

50.94.s32

2,43,50,1 89

10,5 l,203

2,9s,s48

2,56,96,940

51,63,287

6,625

5t,69,972

1,33,55,444

1,60,322

9,17 ,504
12,08,596

3,14,596

4,32,545

4,28,970

I,14,724

40,81 6

3't,63,528

|,42,237

3,43,7s0

23,66,534

2,82,310
s,80,000

6,16,799

2,50,69,675

91,64,223

1,35,32,469

10

0.68
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Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Inforrnation
Capital India Financc Limitcd
Notes to the standalone financial statenlents for the period ended 3{)th Junc 20lg
(All figures are in rupees, except otheruise stated)

Contingcnt liabilities
Tltete are uo contingent liabilities as on 30 JLrnc 20 I 8
There were no pending litigations wliich would irnpact the financial position ofthe cornpany.
There are no loug-tertn contracts including derivative conlracls lor lvhich there were any material foresceablc losses.

22 Capital & ofher cornmitmcnts
- Estirnated anrottnl. of contracts (uet of advances) renraining to be executed on capital accoult a1d not provided for as at 30 .hure 2018 is

Rs.84,3 6,000/-
- Other comnritmerts pertaining to undrawn committed credits as on 30 June 2018 is Rs. 45,30,6g,000/-

Segmcnt information
Tlie Company operates in a sirrgle reportable segrnent i,c. financing, which has sirnilar risks and retunrs lor the purpose ofAS l7 on ,segment
Reporting'specified under sectioti 133 ofthe Companies Acl 2013, read with rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 and Companies
(Accot:ntirrg Standards) Anrendment Rules, 20 16. The Company operates in a single geograplrical segrnent i.e. domesiic.

24 Lcascs (Opcrating Lcasc)

The registered office and colporate office are takett on operating lease, The corporate olfice prerlises has a nop-calcellable lease lor 60 
'ronlhswith an escalation clause of l5% after 36 nlonths. 'l'he registercd ol'tice premiscs arc rcnted on non-cancellable lease for 36 nouths witho.t au

escalation clause. There are no subleases. Leasc payments during the year are charged to statement ofprofit and loss.

25 Related parfy disclosurcs

Disclosures as required by the Accountiug Standard 18 (AS - l8) "Relaterl Party Disclosures', are given below:

Narnes ofrelated parties 'with whom transactions havc taken place during the ycar and description ofrelationship

23

(r)

,..-, i: lt/,,,.'.,'.

ft*Ptj)..', _ _ O"/l
li ,,/

Description

Operating lease payments recognized dunng the period

lVlinimum Leasc Obligations
Not later than onc yoar

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five

t,33,55,444

4,92,53,640

I 3,30,79,805

of thc related party

India Home Loans Limited

Capital India Asset Management Private Linlited
Capital tndia Wealth Managelnent Private Litnited
CIFL Holding Privare Lirnired

CIFL InvestmenI Manager Private Lilnited
Capital India Corp LLP

Sahyog Homes Limited

Keshav Porwal

Mr. Autit Sahai Kulshreshtha

Nature of rclationship

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Colnpany

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Cornpany

Subsidiary Conrpany

Enterprise having signihcant influence or conlrol

Enterprise where key ntanagement personnel exercise significant influence
Managing Director

CEO & Executivc Dircctor



Special Purpose Standalone [nterim Financial Information
Capital India llinance Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statcments for the period endcd 30th Junc 201E
(AllJigures are in ntpees, except otherwise stated)

(ii) Details oftralsaction with related parties mentioned jn (i) above are as follows:

$ Includes allocated shared expenses

Investments in equity shares ofsubsidiaries have been disclosed uner "Non-cunent iovestments" (Refer Note 9)

K

€
A- f.t
(_)

<t)

*

Subsidiary Companies

Nature of the Transaction

Capital India
Home Loans

Limited

Capital India Asset

Mrnagement
Private Limited

Capital Indin
Wefllth

Management
Private Limited

CIFL Holding
Privnte Limited

CIFL Investment
Mannger Privete

Limited

Transactions during the period

Reimbursement of expenses$

Closing balances

Receivable

19,88,956

1 9,88,9s6 26,935 26.935 26.935 26.935

Enterprise where key managcment
pcrsonnel exercise signifi cant influence

Key Managerial Personnel

Nature of the Transaction

Capital India Corp
LLP

Sahyog Homes

Limit€d
Mr. Keshnv

Porwal
Mr, Amit Sahai
Kulshreshtha

Transactions during the period

Reimbursement of expensos

Remuneration paid

lssue ofequity shares

Repayment ofadvance towards share application money

Closing balances

Rcccivable

t,?2,5t,29,000

1,25,00,00,000

4s,201

I 0.54.205

26,34,501 26,25,501



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the standnlone financial statements for the periocl ended 30th June 20lg
(All figures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

26 Gratuity and ofher.post-employmcnl bencfit

Defined Contribution Plan
The Conrpany has recognized Rs. 794,125 for the period euded 30th June 2018 in Stateuient ofProfit and l.oss under Compaly's Contribution to
Provident Fund,

Defined Benefit Plan
The Conpany has a dcfined benefit gratuity plan, under which every ernployee who has completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity 01
departure @15 days oflast drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.
The following tables sutrunarize the colnponeltts ofltet beu€fit expense recognized in the statement ofprofit and loss aud amopnts recognized in the
balance sheet ibr the granriff plan.

Notes

Since the gratuity plan ofthe Cornpany is not funded, the disclosr.rre regarding ohange in fair value ofplan assets and categories ofplan assets are
not required.

I

lSfatcment 
of profit and loss

Nct cmployce bcnefit expense rccognizerJ in the employce cosl
CLtnent seruice cost

Int€rest cost on benefit obligation

Expected rcturn on plan asscts

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period

Aurount not recognized as asset

Gratuity expense

Act(ral return on plan assets

Balance sheet

Benefi t asset/ liability
Present value ofdefined benelit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Less: Amount not recognize as asset

Plan (asset) / liability

Changes in the prcsent value of defined bencfit obligation are as follows
Opening defined benefit obligation

Cunent service cost

Interest cost

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gaius)/ losses on obligation

Closing dcfined benefit obligation

Thc principal assumptions uscd in determining gratuity liability for.thc company is shown belorv:
Discount rate

Expected rate olreturn on assets

Employee turnover

The estilnates offuture salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant thctors, such as sLrpply and demand in the employment rnarket

30-Jun-1 I

2,tl,2s4

392,856

3,92,856

1,35,934

2,t1,2s4

45,668

2,56p22

45,668

3,92,8s(

8.2601

NA

s,00%

5.00%

Defi ned benefrt obl igation

Plan assets

Surplus / (deficit)

Experience adjustments on plan Iiabilities

ounts for thc current period

3,92,856

30-Jun-

Experience on assets



Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Intbrmation
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to thc standalone financial statements for the period cnded 30th June 201g
(AllJigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

27 During the quarter ended 30th June 2018, the shareholders of the Cornpany have approved final dividend @ Re. I per share (10%) on each equity
sltare having a face value ofRs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 35,02,700/- in tho annual general meeting held on June 2, 201g. The said dividend has
also been paid during the quarter,

Duringthcquarteretrded30thJune20lS,theCompanyhasallottcrl3,96,83,000 numberofequitysharesofthefacevalueofRs.l0eachon
preferential basis through private placement, at a price ofRs, 63 eaoh (inoluding a premiurn ofps. 53 each).

For snd on the bonrd
Capital I Limited

s

28

AL".'-*f 9-L:^ y-,^rt"rt +r-l*
Porwal

Managing Director
DIN: 06706341

NeeraJ
Chief Financial

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6th October, 2018

Amit Sahai Kulshreshtha
CEO & Executive Director

DIN: 07869849

r
Malhotra

Conrpany Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6th October, 201 8
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of CAPITAL INDIA FINANCE LIMITED (Formerly known
as Bhilwara Tex-Fin Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial
Information

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying special purpose consolidated interim financial
information (the "Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information") of
Capital India Finance Limited (Formerly known as Bhilwara Tex-Fin Limited)
(hereinafter referred to as the "Parent"/ "Company"), and its subsidiaries (the Parent
and its subsidiaries together referred to as the "Group"), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three months period
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate
financial information of the subsidiaries referred to below in the Other Matter
paragraph, the aforesaid Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial information is
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis set out in note 1 to the
Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated .Interim Financial
Information in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
ICAI together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Special Purpose Consolidated

terim Financial Information

*
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3. Emphasis of Matter- Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and
Use

4.

5.

-qK'ry,q

t-

We draw attention to Note 1to the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial
information, which describes the purpose and basis of preparation, The Special
Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information have been prepared by the
Company for the purpose of preparation of the restated consolidated financial
information as required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 as amended from time to time
in pursuance of provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (the
"ICDR Regulations") in relation to the proposed rights issue of the Company and for
the purpose of filing with BSE Limited. As a result, the Special Purpose Consolidated
interim Financial Information may not be suitable for any another purpose. The Special
Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information cannot be referred to or distributed
or included in any offering document or used for any other purpose except with our
prior consent in writing. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial information of four subsidiaries, whose financial
information reflect total assets of Rs,399,741 as at June 30, 2018, total revenues of
Nil and net cash tlow amounting to Rs. Nil for the three months period ended on that
date, as considered in the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information.
These financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Special purpose
Consolidated Interim Financial Information, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Our opinion on the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information is not
modified in respect of the above matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the basis stated in Note
1 to the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information for the purpose
set out in paragraph 3 above.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Special
Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

l' ,|'
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In preparing of these Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information, the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company are responsible for assessing the abiliiy of
the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but io do so,

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group,

5. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Interim
Consolidated Financial Information

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special purpose
Consolidated Interim Financial Information as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special purpose
Consolidated Interim Financial Information, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error/ as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal financial
control of the Group.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim
Financial Information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
information ol such entities included in the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim

a
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Financial Information of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities (referred to in paragraph 4 above) included in the Special Purpose
Consolidated Interim Financial Information, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeg ua rds,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/ W-100018)

Kalpesh'J. Mehta
Paltner

(Membership No.48791)

Mumbai, October 6, 2018

a
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Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 30th June 2018
(Allfigures are in rupees, except othetuise stated)

Notes 1 to 28 forms part ofSpecial Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
In terms ofour report attached

For Deloitte Hasldns & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : I l7366WAV 10001 8

w^w

For and on of thc board

Limited

Porwal
Managing Director

DIN :06706341

Amit Sahai Kulsbreshtha
CEO & Executive Director

DIN: 07869849

'k

Rachit Malhotra

Company Secretary

Piace: Mumbai

Dale: 6th October,20l 8

( +*^} gJ,u.Jt LcJzL*,.rw;
Kalpeslr J. Mehta
Partner

MembershipNo.:48791

Place: Mumbai

Date: 6th October, 201 8

hr/),
Neerai Toshnhfnl

Chief Financial Oflicer

Place: Mumbai

Date: 6th October, 2018

As atParticulars Notes
3Oth June 2018

il
43,1 8,5?,000

5l

7

7,00,00,000

67,83,581

7

2,4s,09,'t t7
79

3,31

7 79

12,87,88,567

2,1s,136
88,85,000

2s,78,007

l8

1,24,78,47,7s0

3,29,40,000

20,16,79,836

98,08,40,470

i68

II. ASSETS
(l) Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets

(ii) Intangible assets

(iii) Intangible assets under development

(b) Dcfened tax assets (net)
(c) Long{erm loans and advances

Total

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Non'current Iiabilities
(a) Long-term borrorvings
(b) Other long term liabilities
(c) Long+erm provisions

(3) Current liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities
(b) Short term provisions

(2) Current assets

(a) Cunent investment

(b) Trade receivables

(o) Cash and cash eqnivalcnts
(d) Short-term loans and advances

(e) Other currcnt assets

(1) Shareholdersr lunds
(a) Share capital
(b) Reserves and surplus

3

4

5

6

7

6

7

8

12

l0

9

l3
14

l0
11

Totrl

Mumbai



Particulars Notes
Period endcd

30th June 2018

7,79,49,222

56,55,935

8.36,0s.1s7

3,4t,44,396
st,69,912
52,82,728

2,70,70,26s

7,16.67.301

15

16

t7
18

I
19

I,19,37,856

29,57,550

7,36,249

I. Revenue from operations

IL Other incorne

III. Total reYenue

IV, Dxpenses

Employee benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation & amortization expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses

V. Profit before tax (III-IV)
VL Tax expense

(1) Current tax
(2) Defened tax

82,44,057VII. Profit for the period (V-Vl)

Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capitnl India Finance Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the period ended 30th June 2018
(AIl /igures are in rupees , except olherwise stated)

Earnings per equify share

Basic and diluted eaming per equily share (in Rs,)

[face value Rs. I 0 each] (]lot Aru:ualised)

Notes 1 to 28 forms part of Speoial Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
In tcrms of our report attached

For Deloitte Hnskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 1 l7366WM -100018

20
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For and on beha the board

Capital Limitcd

I

Porual
Managing Director

DIN :06706341

Neeraj Toshnirval

ChiefFinancial Offtcer

Place: Mumbai

Date: 6th October.20l8

+** iJ-A v-.,l,lat&^t
Kalpesh J, Mchta

Partner

Membership No. : 48791

Place: Mumbai

Date: 6th October, 201 8

Amit Sahai Kulshreshtha

CEO & Executive Director

DIN : 07869849

Malhotra

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai

Date:6th October,20l8

Mumbai



PARTICUI,ARS Period ended

30th June 20I8

1,19,37,8s6

52,82,728

39,91,682
(56.5 s.93 s)

I,55,56,331

7,36,96,958
(2,97,00,000)

t2,56,548
(9s,64,2s9)

( I 2.0 1.26.6 I 5)

(6,88,81,037)
(8 r.77.s8s)

(1,70,58,622)

(3,64,t4,228)
(1,29,29,64,t72)

5.01 .',12.3s1

(1,21,86,06,043)

2,49,26,3s,412
(42,rs,769)

( I,25,00,00,000)
1,25,00,00,000

( I .25.00.00.000)

I'
CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVI'TIES:
Nct profit bclbre tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for employee benefits

hrcornc from mutual {lnd units

Operating profit beforc working capitnl changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital :

Decrease in loans and advances

(lncrease) irr trade receivables

Increase in other long tenn liabilities
(lncrease) in other cunent assets

(Dectease) in other current liabilit.ics

Cash (uscd in) operations
hicomc tax paid

Net Cnsh (used in) operating activities (A)

B) CASH FROM TNVESTTNG ACTIVITTES:
Purchase of fixed assets

Purchase of curreut investment

Proceeds from salc of current investments

Nct Cash (used in) invcsting activitics (B)

C) CASH I.'LOW I.'ROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds lioni issue ofequity shares at premiunr

Paymont of dividend and dividend distribution tax thereon (Refer note 4 (d))
Repayment ofadvance towards share application money

Proceeds from shofi tenn bonowings
Repayment ofshorl term borrowings
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) I,23,84,19,643

D) Net (dccrcase) in cash and cash equivalcnts (A+B+C)
E) Cash and cash equivalents es at the beginning of the period

(71,72,45,022)

2 I.89.24.858

10.1 6.79.836l') Cns[ nnd cash cquivnlcnts as at the end ofthc period

Special Purpose Consolidated lnterinr Financial Information
Capital India ltinancc Limitcd
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the period cndcd 30th June 2018
(AllJ'igtrres are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

Cash and cash uivn lenls

Notes I to 28 forms part ofSpeoial Purpose Consolidated Interint Financial Information
In tenns of our report attacbcd

For Dcloittc Ilaskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

F'or and on of the board

ncc Linrited
Firm Registration No : I l7366WAV -100018

#AI/)RAb
Kalpesh J. Mehta

Partncr

Mcrnbership No- :48791

Place: Murnbai

Porwal

Director

DIN : 06706341

Nccrrrj

Chief Financial

Place: Munrbai

Date:6th October,20l8

Amit Sahai I(ulshreshtha

CEO & Executive Director

DIN :0?869849

Y

Malhotra
Company Sccretary

Place: Mumbai

Date; 6th October. 20 I 8

Particu la rs
As at

30th Junc 2018

42,248
20,00,000

3,46,37,s 8 8

6.50.00.000

Cash in harrd

Cheques in hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in deposit accounts

10.16.79.836

Mumbai

Dale: 6th October, 20 I 8



Spccial Purpose Consolidated Interim Financinl Infornration
Capital India Financc Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statcments for the pcriod ended 30th,Iunc 20I8
(Allfigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

I Bnsis of prepnration & Consolidation

These Special Purpose Consolidated Interirn Financjal Ilrfonnation relates to Capital India Finance Lirnited (the Cornpany) & its subsidiary
cotnpmies The Company & its subsidiary companies constitllte the group These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Infomration
comprises olthe Consolidatcd Balancc Shect, the Consolidated Statemcut ofProfit and Loss, the Consolidated Statemeut ofCash Flows and a

surnnrary ofSiguificant Accounting Policies and notes thereon (collectively thc "Special Purpose Consolidated lnterim Financial Information').
These Special Purpose Consoljdated Interim Fjnancial Infornration have been prepared by the Group for the purpose of preparation of the restated

consolidated financial information as required under the Securities aud Exchange Board oflndia (Issue ofCapital and Disclosure Requirenrents)

Rcgulations, 2009 as amended frorn time to tirre in pursuance of provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('ICDR
Regulations") in relation to the proposed rights issuc of the Cornpany and for the purposc of filing with BSE Limited. Thc Speoial Purpose

Consolida[ed Interim Financia] Information are prepared and presented in accordance wilh recognition and rneasurement principtes laid down rn
Accounting Standard 25 "lnterim Financial Reporting" prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act,2013, read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as arnetrded, provisions of tl)e Companies Act, 20 I 3 (to the extent notified), as per the guidelines issr.red by
Reserve Bank of India as applicable to a Non-Banking Financial (Non deposit accepting or holding) Companies ('NBFC Regulations') and

accounting policies as mentioned in Note 2 to these Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial hrformation, except that comparative period
financial infonnation have not been presented. 'fhe Special Purposc Consolidated lntcrirn Financial Intbrmation, bcing for the spcciiic purpose as

stated above, are not a cornplete set ofFirtancial Staternents prepared in accordance with the requirerncuts olthe Act and tbe Accounting Standards
issued tlrereunder, and hence infonnation disclosed including the manner ofdisclosure may not be as required by tlre Act and/ or rhe Accoutrting
Standards.

Principles of consolidation

a) The Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information are prepared in accordance wilh AS - 2l on "Consolidated Financial Staternents"

notified under Section 133 of the Companies Acl 20t3 (the'Act') read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4 and the

Companies (Accounting Standards) Arncndmcnt Rulcs 2016. Thc linancial statenients of these group companies are prepared according to uniform
accounting policies, in accordance with accounting principles gcnerally accepted in India The effects of Inter Cornpany transactions are eliminaied
on consolidation,

The financial infbrmation oftho Company and its subsrdiarics have been conrbined on a line-byJine basis by adding together like items ofassets,
liabilities, incotne and expenses, after elirninating intra-group balanccs and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised prolits or losses

The Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information are prepared using uniform accounLing policies for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances aud necessary adjustments reqr-rircd fbr deviations, if any to the extent posslble unless otherwise stated, are made in the

Special Purpose Consolidatcd Interim Financial Information and are presented in the samc manner as the Company's Special Purpose Standalone

Interim Financial Information.

b) The subsidiary companies considered in the presentation ofthe Special Purpose Consolidated Interirn Financial lnformation are:

2 Significant nccounting policies

2.1 Use oJ Eslimnles

The preparahon of financial statements is in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ('GAAP') requires management to
make judgrnents, estimates and assurnptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of asscts, liabilities, income and

expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial stateJnents, Management believes that the estimates made in the

preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could djffcr from tbese estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in cuncnt ald fiLture periods.

2.2 'Operuting cycle

Ilased on the nature ofactivitics ofthe Group and the normal time belwsen acquisition ofassels and their realization in cash or cash cquivalcnts, thc

Group has determined its operating cycle as l2 months for the purpose ofclassifioation ofits asscts and liabilities as current arrd non-current,

Kl,V
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Country of
incorporation

India

India

India

India

India

Proportion of
owncrship interest as

on 30 June 2018

t00%

t00%

t00%

t00%

t00%

on 3l Marcb 2018

t00%

I 00%

t00%

t00%

10070

3t

3l
3l

3t

31

ownership interest as

rticulars of
ends

India Honre Loars Lirnited

tal India Asset Management Private Limited

tal India Wealth Managerncnt Private Lirnited

Holding Private Lirnitcd

Inyestment Manager Private Li'nited

.t



Special Purposc Consolidefed Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limitcd
Notcs to the consolidntetl financial srafements for the periotl entlcd 30th June 201g
(Allfgures are in rupees, except othenrise stated)

2 Signilicantaccounting policics (Contiuted)

2,3 Fixed ossels, depteciotlon url tntortisotion

a)

b)

c)

Tangible Jixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are canied al cost ofacquisition or consl.ruction less accumulated depreciation and / or accurlulated imparr*rent loss, ifany.
The cost ofan item oftangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of
bringing tbe asset to its working condition for its intended use. subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it iricreasesihe future econornic
benefits frorn the spectfic asset to which it relales. Tangible fixed assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progrcss.

Acquircd intangible assets

Ititangible ossets thal are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intaugible asset is caried at its cost less
aDy accumulated alnortisation and any accumulated irnpairment loss Subsequent experrdituri is capitalised only r.vhen it jncreases the future
economic benefits frorn the specific asset to which it relates.

Leasehold i nprovetnen ls

Lcasclrold improvcment incluclcs all expcnditure incltrrcd on the lcasehold premiscs that havo fi.rtrrre ecorromic benefits. Leasehold irnprovements
are written off over tlre period of lease

D eprec i a ti o n o nd a fi ort i:o I i oh

Depreciation / arnortisation is provided over thc useful lif'c of the asscts, pro rata for the period of use, on a straight-lipe rnethod, The Lrselirl lif.e
estimates prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the 20 I 3 Act have been considerecl as useiLrl Iife for tarrgible assets. Acquired intangible assets arealnortised over a period as per management estirnates of their usefi:l Iife. Pursuant to this policy, the usefu| Iife estirnates lu respect of the follorving
assets are as follows:

d)

Tangible fixed assets

Cornputers & Printers

Fumihrre & FixtLrrcs

Leasehold Inrprovements

Office Eqnjpments

Vchicles

Acquired inlangible assets

Co:rputer sollwarc

Estimated useful life

3 Years

l0 Years

5 yeils

5 Ycms

5 ycils

3 Ycars

e)

f)

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i-e. from the month in which asset is ready for use. Individual assets costing less than or eqaals to Rs.
5,000 are depreciated in full, in the year of purchase Depreciation on assets sold during the year is recognized on u p.o-ru-tu basis i; the staternent ofprofit and loss up to the morrth prior to the month in which the assets have been disposed oill

Gains / Io,s,tes on disposal of assets

Losses arising from rotirement or gains or losses arising from disposal oftangibie and intangible assots are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and tlte carrying amount ofthe asset aud are recognised in the statemeui of profit and loss.

Inpnlrment of nssets

TheGroupassessesateachbalarrcesheetdatewhetherthereisanyindicationthatanassetrnaybeirrpairedbasedonintenral/external 
factors Ifany

such indication exists, the croup estimales the rccoverable arnount ofthe asset. IfsLrch recoveiable arlount ofthe assel or the recoverablc amount ol.
the cash getlerating trnit which the asset belongs to, is less than its carrying amount, lhe carrying amounl. is reduced to its recoverable amount Thereductioll is treated as an impainnent loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and losi. Iiat the balance sheet date there is an indicatjon tSat
a previotrsly assessed impaiment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a nraximurn ofdepreciable historjcal cost.

2.4

2.5 Lenses

Assets acquired under lcase other than fitraltce lease are classified as operating lease. The total lease rentals in respect ofassets taken on operating
lease are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease tenn (in accordance with AS-19 ,Leases' 

as prescribed by
Companies (Accor.rnting Standards) Rules, 2006).
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Special Purpose Consolidrted Interim Financial Inforntation
Cnpifal Indin Financc Limited
Notos to the consolidated financinl stntemcnts for thc periotl cndcd 30th June 2018
(Allfigtrres are in rupees , except olhetwise staled)

2 Significnntaccorrntingpolicics(Conlinued)

2.6 Lotns

I.,oans are stated at the arnount advanced, as redLrced by the amounts received up to the balance sheet date.

2.7 Provisioning/ llrilu-lIJoil nssels

Proyisioning/ Wt'ite-off on owrdue qssels

The provisioning / write-off or overdue assets is as per the rnanagement estimates, subject to the minirnunr provision required as per Master

Direction-Non Banking Fiuancial Cornpany-Non-Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit taking Cornpany (Resewe Bank) Directions, 20 [6

Provision ofi standard assets

Provision on standard assets has been rnade @ 0.40% which is in accordance wilh Reserve Bank of India ('RBl') guidelines

2.8 Inwslftrenls

Investrnents that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as cunent investnleuts. All other irlvcstments
are classified as non currcnI ilrvcstrrents

Cufient investments are canied at lower ofcost and lair value deterurirred on an individual investurent basis. Unquoted investments in the urrits of
mutual ftlnds are valLted at the net asset value declared by the rnutual fLrnd in respect ofeach particular schcme as per NBFC prudential nonns.

Non curren{. inveshrrents are carried at cost However, provision for diminution in valuc is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the

value of the illvestments

Profit or loss on sale of inveshnents is detennined on a first irr first out basis. Any reduction in the carrying amounl and any reversals of such
reductions are charged or credjted to statement of profit and loss.

2.9 Revenue rucognition

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis, wheu no significant uncertainty as to detenninatiolt or realization exisfs,

hrterest incomc is recognised on tirne proportionate basis, ln case ofnon perlorming assets, interest inoome is recognised on receipt basis as per
NBFC prudential norms. Penal jnterest is recognised on receipt basis.

Fee income is recogniscd on an accrual basis on cornpletion ofservices as enurnerated in the milestones specified in the mandate lelter.

Upfrotrt/processing fees is recogrrised as income as per terms lrentioned in loan agreement.

Dividend incotne is recognised when the shareholders' right to reccive payment is established by the balance sheet date. Djvjdend frorn the units of
mutual funds is recognized on receipt basis in accordance with the NBFC Regulation-

2.10 Relirement md olher entployee bencrtfi

All ernployee benefits payable wholly within twelve nronths of rendering tbe service are classified as short term enrployee benefits, These beneflts
irrclude salary, bonus, allowances and compensated absences. The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in
oxchange for the seryice rondered by thc crnployccs is rccognised as an exponsc as the servico is rendered by thc employecs.

The Group operates defined benefit plans for its employees pertaining to gratuity liability. The costs of providing benefits under this plan are

determined on the basis ofactuarial valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out using thc projectcd unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and Iosscs for this defined benefit plans are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the staterneut ofprofit and loss.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next l2 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the

expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a rcsult of the uuused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-tenn ernployee benefit for n'reasurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit metbod at the year-
end. Actuarial gains/ losses are irrmcdiatcly taken to tlre statement ofprofit and loss and arc not defened. 'fhc (iroup presents t)re leavc as a cunent
liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it docs not have an unc<.rnditional right to defer its settlernent for l2 rnonths afterthe reporting date.
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Spccial Purpose Consolidatcd Interim liinancial Information
Capital India Financc Limitcd
Notes to the consolidatcd financialstitemcnts for the period enrlcrl 30th Junc20Ig
(Allf gures are in rupees, excepr olhetwire stated)

2 Significantaccountilg policics (Coutitnei)

2,11 BotrotehtE costs

tsonowing costs consists of interest and othcr cost that an entity incurs jn connection ',vith borrowing offunds Bonowing costs arc recognized as
an expense in the period in rvhich these are incun.ed

2.13

Shnre issue eupenses

Share issLte expenses related to isstlance ofequity are debited against securities premiurn account in accordance r,vith the provisions ofSection 52 of
the Courpanies Act, 20 1 3.

Fo reig n cu rren c1, lrfl n s n ctio ns

Foreign exchatlge transactions are recorded the spot rate on the date of the respective transactions Exchange differe[ces arising orr foreign
exchange tratrsactions settled during the period are recognised in the statemeut ofprofit and Ioss for the period.

Monetary assets and liabjlities denolninated in loreign currencies as at thc balancc sheet datc arc translated at the closiug cxchange ratcs on that
date; the resultant exchange differences are recogni,sed in the statemerrt ofprofit and loss,
Non tronetary assets and liabilities are carried at historical cost using exchange rates as on the date ofthe respective traDsactions.

2,14 Tnxotion

2.1s

2,t6

2.17

Incone taK €xpellse cotnprises current tax including minirnum alternate tax ('MAT') (i.e. amount of tax for the period detennined in accordance with
thelncomeTaxAct, t96l)anddeferredtaxchargeorcredit(reflectingthetaxeffectsof tinringdifferencesbefweenaccountingincomeandtaxable
incorne for the year).

The ittterim period income tax expense is calculated by applying, to the interim period's pre-tax incorre, the tax rate that would be applicable to
expected total annual camings, i,e, the estirnated avcrage annual effective income tax rate
The defened tax charge or credit and the corresponding defened tax liabilities or assets are recogflized using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by thc balance shcet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the exient there is reasonable certainty that lhe assets can
be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation ol. 

"urii"d 
fo.waid loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized

to the extent there is virttul certainty ofrealizatiotr ofsuch assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and witten down or
written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized,

MAT paid in accordance to the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form ofadjushnent offuture income tax liability, is
considered as atl assot if there is convincing evidence that the Group wilJ pay normal income tax in future years and is recognized as tax credit in
statement ofprofit and loss.

P rovisio ns on il co n ting encies

'l'he Group creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past evenl that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliableestirnatecanbernadeoftheamountoftheobligation Adisclosure foraconLingentliabilityismadewhenthereisapossiblcobligatio'ora
present obligation that lllay, but probably will not, require an outflorv ofresources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect ofwhich tbe likelihood ofoutflow ofresources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Eornlngs per slmrc

The basic eamings per share is cotnputed by dividing the net profit / loss after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the poriod by tbe
wcigbtedavcragentrrnbcrofcquibysharcsoutstandingduringthercporting period,Forthepurposeofcalculatingdilutedearningspershare,thenet
profit for the year atlributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average nurnber ofshares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and cnsh equivnlents

Cash and Cash Equivalents for lhe pLrrpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit with original
rnaturity period ofthree tnonths atrd short tcrm highly liquid invostmonts with an original maturi\i ofthree n)onths or less,



Special Purpose Consolidated Intcrim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(Allfigures are in rupees, except othemvise stated)

3 Sharc capital

Authorizrd share capilal
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Preference shares of Rs. I 0 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs. l0 each

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

At the beginning of the period

Add :Allotment during the period

Outstanding at thc end ofthc period

As af
30th,Iune 2018

Numbcr Amount

20,40,00,000

I,00,00,000

2,04,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

21,40,00,000 2,I4,00,00,000

4,31,85,700 43,18,57,000

4,31,8s,700 43,18,s7,000

a. Reconciliationof thcsharesandamountoutstandingatthebcginningandattheendof thereportingperiod:

As at
30th June 2018

Number Amount
3s,02,700

3.96.83.000
3,50,27,000

39,68,30,000

4,3r,8s,?00 43,18,57,000

b, Terms and rights attached to fully paid up cquify sharcs:

TheCompanyhasonlyonetypeofequityshareshavingparvalueofRs. l0each.All sharesrankpari passuwithrespecttodividend,voting
rights and other terms. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by thc Board ofDireotors is subject
to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The repayment of equity share
capital in the event ofliquidation and buy back ofshares are possible subjeot to prevalent regulations. In thc event ofliquidation, normally
flre equily shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining asscts of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their holdings.

c. Shares in the Company hcld by each shareholdcr holding more than 57o sharcs:

As at
30th June 2018

Number %
llquity shnns ol Rs"_l_0 cuch

Capital lndia Corp LLP (brmerly known as Trident [Jolding LLP)
Dharampal Satyapal Limited
Total 3,45,13,100

d. Advancc towards share application moncy:

During the curent quarter, tlie Company has refunded back an amount of{ 125,00,00,000 received frotr Capital India Corp LLP as

advanoc against share application money towards its entitleurerrt under thc proposed Rigtrts Issue of the Company.

2,96, r5,300

48,97,800

68j8%
fi.34%

79.92Vo

b

n
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Special Purpose Consolidated Interim X'inancial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements lbr the period ended 30th June 2018
(AIlJigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

4 Reserryes and surplus

a) General reserve

Opening balance

Add : Transfer during the period

Total

b) Stntutory Reserve undcr Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934

Opening balancc

Add : Transfer during the period

Total

c) Securities premium account

Opcning ba'lance

Add : Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Less: Share issue expenses

d) Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening balance

Add : Profit for the period

Less : Transfer to Statutory Reservs under Section 45-IC ofthe RBi Act, 1934

Less : Dividend on equity shares

Less : Dividend tax thereon

Net Surplus in the slatement of profit and loss

Total reserves and surplus

A.s at
30th June 2018

1,76,099

1,76,099

75,80,0 l0
t8,32,844

94,t2,854

2,10,3 1,99,000

73,93,5 8 8

2,09,59,05,412

2,46,36,542

82,44,0s7

3,28,80,599

18,32,844

35,02,700

7,13,069

2168,31r986

2,73,22,26,357

((\r-CA
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Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30th June 20lg
(Allfigures are in rupees , excepl otherwise stated)

As at
3Oth June 2018

Non-current Current5 Borrowings

Unsecured
From corporates (Inter-corporate deposits) 7.00.00"000

7.00.00.000

Additional information:
Detnils Of UnsccUre-qlbOtrpryiUq,s fronr Cenrorntos:
- Inter Corporate deposits ofRs. 7,00,00,000 at an interest rate of 8% and repayable on 16 February,2)22.
- Inter corporate deposits ofRs. 1,25,00,00,000 is raised at an interest rate of I l% and repayable on demand. The same has been repaid during

the period.

6 Other liabilitics

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Rent equalisation reserve

Statutory dues payable

Creditors for capital goods

Other payables

6?,83,s8 l
43,44,2s0

s 8,77,809

1,08,78,224

34,09,434

67.83.58r 2.45,09.717

7 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for standard assets
6,12,282

I,t l,l I I
46,32,881

40,46,639

1,23,393 86,79.520

Klllg)
+
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Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period eniled 30th June 20lg
(Allfigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

8 Fixed assets

Gross block

Particulars

Tangible assets

Office equipment

processing equipments

mprovements

lamortization
As at

1st April, 2018
As at

30th June 2018
As at

01st April, 2017
Depreciation for

the period

& fixtr:res

As at
30th June 2018

5,30,32,590

49,27,974

86,75,528
6,27,0s,744

28,31,697

3,44,900

4,07,447

13,83,747

3,22,66,265

37.59.374

7t,92,509
4,44,49,041

Capital work in progress

Additions
during the

assets undgr

Deletions

2,07,66,325

17,06,592

14,83,019

r,86,56,703

Intangible assefs

Computer softwares
2 604

the period

2.59.987

259.987 2.59-9A7 21..604
8,7527,176 5.15.42-639

89

52,82.728 46247

2,04,96,66s

30,25,000

5,37,992

rNs

F

^ff::i?,

(-
ar)

58,60,000

d-

5.37-992

Accumulated

2.04,96,66s

21,49,179

3,51,s23
3,04,824

14,62,866

13.8531.823

Adjustments
during the

88,85,000

23

23247

42,91.639

As at
30th June 2018

46,247

Net

49,80,866

6,s0,t76
'1,t2,271

28,46,607

4,80,51,724

42,71,798

19,63,2s7

5,98,59,137

86.36.65 I
94.83-269

44,851

88,85,000

o

a

2o
@

12.87.88.567

2.1s.136



Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance l,imited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(All fi.gures are in rupees , except otherwise stated)

9 Investments

Trade investments

Investment in mutual fund units (At Net Assets Value):

Adirya Bkla Sun L,ife Cash Plus - Direct GroMh

Franklin India Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth

HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct - crowth

ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan -Direct - Growth

Reliance Liquid Fund - Direct - Growth

10 Loans and advances

(Secured, considered good)

Loans and advauces relating to financing activity

([.]ns e cured, consi dere d good)

Loans and advances relating to financing activity
Other loans and advances
- Advances to related parties
- Advance to employees

- Advances to suppliers
- Security deposits

- Balances with statutory authorities
- Advance taxes (net ofprovision for tax)
- Prepaid expenses

11 Other assels

Interest accrued and due

lnterest accrued but not due

As at
30th June 2018

Non-current Current

25,10,38,573

22,34,91,407
24,60,09,104

28,63,0 1,860

24,t0,06,806

1,24,78.47.750

2,77,77,778

t I,06,640

1,85,25,210

84,32,48,s90

I 1,00,00,000

I 0,54,205

13,86,644

26,25,6'10

32,s3,389

1,78,s4,558

14,17,4t4

4.74.09.628 98,08,40,470

1,82,73,279

s3,21,889

2,35,95,168



Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated finsncial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(Allfigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

12 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax asset comprises of:
Provision for standard assets

Provision for employee benefits

Rent oqualisation reserve

Depteciation on fixed assets

Others

Del'erred tnx liability compriscs of:
Timing differences in recognition of income

Deferred tax assets (Net)

13 Trade receivables

(Uns ecure d, consi dered goo d)

Outstanding for a period exoeeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Other receivables

14 Cash and bank balances

Cash anil cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in fixed deposits with original mah:rity less than 3 months
Cheques in hand

Other bank balanccs
- Short term deposits with banks

(Other bank deposits with maturity less than 12 months)

As at
30th June 2018

1 1,56,690

14,45,749

12,08,570

41.706

2,31,268

(1s,1r,976)

25,79,007

3,29,40,000

3,29,40,000

42,248

3,46,37,588

6,s0,00,000

20,00,000

10,1 6,79,836

I 0,00,00,000

20,76r79,836



Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period cnded 30th June 2018
(Allfigures are in rupees, excepl olherwise stated)

15 Revenuc from opcrations

Interest income

Fee income

16 Othcr incomc

lncome from mutual fund units

l7 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other firnds

Staffwelfare

I8 Finance costs

Intorest expenses

Bank charges

19 Ofher oxpenses

Rent

Rate, fee & taxes

Repairs & maintenance - others

Office expenses

Electrioity charges

Communication exp enses

Printing & stationory

lnsurance

Membership & subscription

Travelling & conveyance

Advertisenent, marketing & business promotion expcnses

Auditor's remuneration

- Audit fees

Legal & profossional ohargcs

Listing fee

Directors sitting fees

Miscellaneous expenscs

20 Darnings per sharc (Not Annualised)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs.)

Weiglrtcd average nuurber of equity shares outstanding during thc period

Nominal value of an equity share (Rs.)

Basic antl dilutcd earnings per share (in Rs.)

KJIV

Pcriod cndcd

30th June 2018

4,44,49,222

3,35,00,000

'l,79,49,222

56,55,935

56,s5,935

3,23,32,785

t4,96,263
3,15,348

3,4L,44,396

s1,63,28?

6,625

___--__s1,69'912_

t,42,59,727

4,4r,812
t2,60,156
12,6 1,888

3,43,464

4,56,109

4,44,838

1,14,724

40,816

38,50,421

t,42,237

5,25,000
24,13,s34

2,82,310

s,80,000

6,s3,229

2.70,70,265

82,44,057

1,35,32,469

10

0.61
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Spccial I'urpose Consolidated Interim Finnncial Information
Cnpital Indin Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(Allfigures are in rttpees, except olherwise stated)

Contingent liabilities
There are no contingenl liabilities as on 30 June 2018.
There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the Group,

There are no long-temr contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable Iosses.

Capifal & other commitments
- Estimated amount ofcontracts (net ofadvances) remaining lo be exeoutcd on capital account and not provided for as at 30 June 2018 is

Rs,99,36,000.

- Other comtnilrnents pertaining to undrawu cornmitted credits as on 30 June 2018 is Rs. 45,30,68,000.

Segment infolmation
The Group operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, which has similar risks and rehrnrs for thc purposc ofAS 17 on 'segment
Reporting' specified under section 133 of the Companies Aot 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 atrd

Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Housing lr-inance business has not yet corrunenced as registration with
Natiorral Housing Board is pending. The Group operatcs in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

24 Lcases (Operating Lease)

The registered office and corporate office are taken on operating lease. The oorporate office premises has a non-cancellable lcasc for 60

months with an escalation clause of I5%o after 36 months, The registered office premises are rented on non-cancellabte lease for 36

months without an escalation clause. There ate no sublcascs. Lease payments during the year are charged to statenlenl of profit and loss.

t< Related parfy disclosures

Disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard 18 (AS - 18) "Related Party Disclosnres" are given below :

Names ofrelated parlies with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description ofrelationship:(i)

KIN

/,"- ,'
It i (.1

[., ' \,''r

,t

U)

t-!-
Q)

lr

Description

Operating lease payments recognized during the year

Minimum Lease Obligations

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than llvc ycars

Later than flve

|,24,28,4t3

30-Jun- I

4,92,53,640

I 3,30,79,80s

Namc of the related party

Capital India Corp I-LP

Sahyog Homes Limited

Mr. Kcshav Ponval

Mr. Amit Sahai Kulshreshtha

Mr Vineet Kumar Saxena

Nature of relationship

Enterprise where key management personnel exercise signilicant influence

Enterprise where key management personnel exercise significant influence

Managing Director

Executive Director & CEO ofCapital India Finance Ltd.

Executive Director & CEO ofCapital India Home Loans Ltd.



Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated finrncial statements for the period ended 30th June 20lg
(AllJigures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

(ii) Details oftransaction with related partios montioned in (i) above are as follows:

Enterprise where key management
personnel exercise signifi cant

influence
Key Managerlnl Personnel

Nature of the Trensaction

Capital Indla
Corp LLP

Sahyog Homcs
Llmited

Mr, Keshav
Porwal

Mr, AmltSahal
Kulshreshthn

Mn Vlneet
Kumar Saxena

Transactlons durlng the period

Reimbursement of experses

Remuneration paid

Issue ofequity shares

Repayment ofadvance towsrds sharo

application monoy
Closlng balences

Receivable

1,72,s1,29,000

1,25,00,00,000

4s,207

10.54.205

26,34,s01 26,25,50t 29,88,9 I 8



Specinl Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Capitnl India F'inance Limited
Notes to thc consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30th June 20Ig
(All Jigures are in rupees, except otherwisc stated)

26 Gratuity and other post-employment bcnefit

Defined Conlribution Plan
The Company has recognized Rs, 10,19,759 for the period ended 30th June 2018 in Statenent ofProfir and Loss rnder Company's Cot)tribution to
Provident Fund,

Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan, under which every ernployee who has completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure @15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of sewice.
Tlte following tables sutnmarize the components ofnct benefit expense recognized in the statemelt of profit and loss and amourrts recognized in the
balance sheet for the grahrity plan.

Notes:

Since the gratuity plan ofthe Group is not funded, the disclosure regarding change in fair value ofplan assots and categories ofplan assets are not
required.

30-J
of profit and loss

Net employee btnefit expcnse recognized in the employee cost
Cunent service cost

Interest cost on benefit obligation

Expected return on plan assets

actuarial (gaiu) / loss recognized in the period 45,668
not recognized as asse!

expense 4,76,34
return on pJan assets

Balancc shcet

Benefi t asset/ liability
Present value of defrned benefit obligation

Fair value ofplf,n assets

6,t

Amount not recognize as asset

(asset) / liability 6,

Changes in tlle present value of dcfined bcnefit obligation arc as follorvs
Opening defined ben€fit obligation

Ciltrcnt service cost

Intcfssl cost

Pffil service cost

Bonelits paid

1,35,934

4,30,680

(gains)/ losses on obligation 4s,668

6,12,282ng defined benefit obligation

principal assumptions uset-l in detcrmining gratuity liabillty for thc Group is shorvn below:
rat€

Expected rate ofreturn on assets

Ernployee turnover

The estimates offuturc salary increases, considered in actuarial valualion, take account ofinflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as and detnand in the etnployment markel

Assets
6,12,282

30-Jun-1

/ (dencit)

adjustments on plan liabilities

on plan assets

Amounls for the current period

Dofincd benofi t obligation



Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Information
Crpital India Finance Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2018
(All figures are in rupees, except otherwise stated)

During the quarter ended 30th June 2018, the shareholders ofthe Company have approved final dividend @, Re. 1 per share (10%) on

cachequitysharehavingafacevalueofRs. l0eachaggregatingtoRs.3.5,02,700/-intheamualgeneralmeetingheldonJune2,20lS.

The said dividend has also been paid during the quarler.

During the quader ended 30th June 2018, the Company has alloned 3,96,83,000 number ofequity shares of the faoe value ofRs.10
each on preferential basis through private placement, at a price ofRs. 63 each (including a premium ofRs. 53 each).

For and on ofthe board
Capital Limited

27

28

(

Porwal
Managing Director
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